METS RFP Questions/Comments and Government Response (Part 2)

(RFP36449-GCR)

1.  Will Relocation, Program Management, and Program Control costs be considered direct contract charges? 

a.  If so, will a Management Task Order be designated for these types of costs?  

b.  Will this type of cost be paid from institutional funds or allocated to each task                    

            order? 

R: Relocation, Program Management, Program Control, etc. costs may be either a direct or indirect charge.  In accordance with L.15, cost proposals should be prepared in a manner consistent with your current accounting system.  Further, direct labor must be estimated on the basis of productive effort which is the estimated number of hours required to perform the work.  The BOE section shall describe the proposed cost estimating processes and methodologies.   There will not be a specific Management Task Order for these types of costs.   

2.  How will Award Fee be evaluated?  Will contractor receive a separate score for each Task Order, or will evaluation be based on total Contract performance during the award fee period?

a.  Do you anticipate that NTE rates identified in Attachment B, tables 1, 2, and 4 be a    

     factor in the Award Fee evaluation formula for cost?  If so, how?

R:  Each of the Task Orders will be evaluated but the contractor will only receive an overall score for Technical Performance during the evaluated period.  The NTE rates in Attachment B are used to negotiate each Task Order.  The award fee cost evaluation, in part, will be based on the negotiated task orders compared to the actual cost of the task orders.  

3.  Can the rates in Section B.3, ‘Limitation of Indirect Rates’, page 7 be different than the rates listed in Attachment B, Table 2, ‘Indirect Cost Rate Matrix’?

R:  Yes.  The indirect rates in Attachment B are not-to-exceed bidding rates for the Task Orders where as the indirect rates in Clause B.3 are ceiling rates.  Therefore, the rates may differ.  However, the indirect rates in Attachment B cannot exceed the indirect rates in Clause B.3.

4.  Do you anticipate that the Subcontractor fully burdened labor rates from Attachment B, Table 4, `Subcontractor Loaded Labor Rates Matrix’, will be included in the prime contractor’s proposal package, or submitted in each subcontractor’s sealed package?

a.  If submitted in sealed packages by each subcontractor with the initial proposal,      

    will it be acceptable for each task order after contract award to include a

    subcontractor certification to the prime that the task order rates have not been

    exceeded along with a sealed package from the prime with a breakdown of

    costs by labor category?

R:  The Government anticipates that the subcontractor fully burdened labor rates in Attachment B will be included in the prime's proposal and not submitted separately.  Since these rates are fully burdened, the Government does not anticipate proprietary issues.  Provision L.15.1(b) requires a detailed breakdown of Other Direct Costs, including subcontracting costs, which may be submitted in a separately sealed package.  All information in Provision L.15.1(b) is excluded from the page count.      

5.  Are the Prime and all relevant Subcontractors required to submit Section K?

R:  Only the prime is required to submit a Section K.

6.  We request clarification concerning the number of off-site employees.  

In Section L, Page 99, the solicitation reads: 

The offeror shall describe their plans for providing facilities for off-site personnel and its location and for communications and commuting between GSFC and the off-site space in order to accomplish the requirements of the Statement of Work.  Offeror's shall use the information in Enclosure B as a basis for determining the Government's off-site space requirements for this solicitation.  Offeror's shall assume the off-site requirement for this effort is approximately two-thirds of the off-site staffing on the MEDS contract (approximately 42 FTEs). 

In Enclosure B, the total number of off-site FTE s for the MEDS is 126.

What number should we use in determining the size of the off-site facility?

R:  Approximately 42 FTEs should be used in determining off-site facility requirements.  The RFP should read "...approximately one-third."   Amendment One corrects this error.

7.  Ref L.14.3 Subfactor B, second paragraph 

Instructions call for Section 5 of Attachment B to be included in the Offer Volume I.

There is no reference to this requirement in L.13 Offer Volume instructions. Attachment B is called for in L.15 Cost Volume, however no reference is made to section 5 of Attachment B.

Please clarify this instruction and provide instructions regarding where Section 5 of Attachment B is to be placed in the proposal.

R:  Provision L.13 states that "the indicated offeror required fill-in's in Sections B-K must be completed."  Section J lists the applicable contract attachments and therefore a completed Attachment B shall be submitted in the Offer Volume (Volume I).  A copy of Sections 1-4 of Attachment B shall also be submitted in the Cost Volume.   Amendment One revises Subfactor B to state that a copy of Section 5 of Attachment B shall be included in Volume II and is excluded from the page count.
8.  I am submitting this email to address a concern regarding the schedule, as presented at the pre-solicitation briefing. The presented schedule, i.e. announcement of the ESES award well before announcement of the METS award, creates a disadvantage for the successful METS offeror by giving the selected ESES contractor a month to capture incumbent employees before the METS contract is established. This will result in cherry picking the most qualified employees as all potential incumbents are in the same labor pool. We propose that both contract awards be announced simultaneously to ensure both contractors have access to incumbent staff.

R:  The Government is planning to simultaneously announce the ESES and METS selections.

9.     The assumption that all deliverables listed in RTO-6 refer to the Comprehensive Performance Test (CPT).  Please validate this assumption and clarify if invalid.

R:  Yes, all of the deliverables refer to the Comprehensive Performance Test (CPT).  
10.  Will this contract award go to one company or multiple companies?

R:  The contract will be awarded to a single company.
11. Reference: L.15.1, Page 106 & Enclosure B - Was the Government's estimate of the average hourly rate provided in Enclosure B based on a 40-hour workweek?  If affirmative, must a contractor proposing a different workweek reflect and justify the impact of that workweek on the average hourly rate?
R:  The rates in Enclosure B are based on a 40-hour workweek.  Offerors shall explain their cost estimating process and methodology which includes their approach to calculating labor hours and rates.     

12. Reference Exhibit 1 - METS RTO 6--Plan and conduct end-to-end  verification of the ABC mission (page 13):

Under para. 2 of the RTO's SOW, the first sentence reads, "....end-to-end verification test..... whereas the second sentence reads, "The verification task..."    

 The difference between the two words in the sentences produces an ambiguity which involves a considerable difference in scope of this task.  The complexity between a task that involves only "Identification...." as shown in the sub-bullets and implies witness and possibly analysis of test results,  is very different from the direction to test, which involves the actual conduct and analysis of test results.  The resulting costs are very different, also. 

Please clarify and/or correct the SOW, particularly the two words in question.

R:  RTO 6 was revised in the final RFP to address these issues.  

13. Reference Section L.15, Cost Volume,Subfactor (b) RTO Costs, please clarify the term "month" as used herein i.e. month = 30 days (e.g. January 21st - February 20th); month = calendar month (e.g. January 21st - January 31st); OR month = corporate fiscal month.

 R:  "Month" equates to calendar month (e.g. March 1st - March 31st, April 1st – April 30, etc.).  Amendment One clarifies the task start date for each RTO.  

14. Reference Section L.16, Past Performance Volume, Subfactor (a) Information from the Offeror (page 111),  the offeror is instructed to "List any contracts terminated (partial or complete) within the past 5 years and the basis for termination (convenience or default)."  

Does this requirement include subcontractors and/or team mates, or is only the prime offeror required to submit this information?

R:  This information shall be submitted for the prime and any proposed significant subcontractors (defined as any subcontract that is likely to exceed $3M).

15. We request that the annual OSHA reports (Form 200 or 300) be restricted to those that cover work locations relevant to ESES and METS performance.  Offerors with multiple locations could potentially be providing more than 50 pages of Form 200s to cover all individual work locations.

R:  OSHA records are excluded from the page count. 

16. We request that, in lieu of OSHA training logs with signatures, offerors be allowed to submit a list of employees who have attended OSHA training over the past five years and that this list be verified and signed by the respective company Safety Officers.  Because customer-site (including GSFC) contractor personnel attend OSHA training classes conducted by customer trainers who maintain the sign-in sheets, this data is not readily available to contractors.

R:  In those cases where signature sheets are not available, it is acceptable to provide a list of employees as long as the list is verified and signed by the cognizant safety official.

17.  References:
L.14, Part 3, Subfactor B (page 99)




L.15, Part 1, Enclosure B (page 106)




Exhibit 2 – SOURCE OF PERSONNEL CHART




Enclosure B.  MEDS Direct Labor

The referenced Section L instructions and the Exhibit 2 format appear to require that we specify the number of personnel required for each labor category, and for each year of the ESES and METS contracts, for the total contract requirements.  However, these are IDIQ Task Order contracts.  With no information on the scope of the Task Orders that will be issued in each year of these contracts, we cannot predict how many personnel will be required.  For Year 1, we might assume that the total (ESES plus METS) staffing requirements will be similar to the MEDS staffing provided in Enclosure B.  However,  we cannot determine the separate staffing requirements, by labor category, for the ESES and METS contracts.

We request that the Government remove the requirement for the Offerors to complete Exhibit 2.  Alternately, we suggest that the Government specify that Exhibit 2 be filled out only for the staffing (labor categories and number of personnel per labor category) proposed by the Offerors to perform the (ESES or METS) RTOs.  Exhibit 2 also appeared in the PAAC II RFP (RFP5-02263-178).  In its final form, this RFP required that Exhibit 2 be completed for the proposed RTO staffing, not for the total IDIQ contract requirement.

R:  The final RFP states that Exhibit 2, Source of Personnel Chart, is to only be completed for each RTO.  

18.  RTO 4:
One of the deliverables in this RTO is identified as the “Preliminary GN&C Algorithm Descriptions.”  However, there is no Statement of Work activity that would lead to this deliverable.  We suggest that NASA add “GN&C conceptual design, modeling, and simulation” to the RTO 4 SOW.  [The suggested addition is taken from the METS contract-level SOW Function 3, Paragraph H.1.b.]

R: The Government updated RTO #4 in the final RFP.  The RTO now includes "perform GN&C conceptual design, modeling, and simulation, " in the SOW.
19.  RTO 5
The Applicable Documents list includes the “ABC Mission Operations Concept.”  The Deliverables list includes “Updated Mission Operations Plan” (due two (2) weeks after ATP).  We suggest that the intended deliverable is the “Updated Mission Operations Concept.”  Alternately, if the intended deliverable is the “Updated Mission Operations Plan,” then the “ABC Mission Operations Plan” should be an applicable document, and the “Updated Mission Operations Plan” deliverable should not be due until twelve (12) weeks after ATP (i.e., at the conclusion of the Accommodation Trade Study).

Although it is a deliverable, the RTO 5 SOW makes no reference to this activity.  We suggest that the SOW should include a statement that requires the contractor to update the Mission Operations Concept or Plan.

R: The Government updated RTO #5 in the final RFP.  RTO #5 now includes "Updated Mission Operations Concept" as the first deliverable.

20.  Reference:  L.15.1 pg. 105 and L.15.1.c, page 108:

The per RTO threshold for subcontractor participation was changed from $100k in the draft RFP to $50k.  This threshold for ESES is $250k.  To ensure that there are no typographical errors please verify that the $50k threshold is correct.

R:  The $50,000 threshold is correct.

21.  Reference:  L.15.1.c, L.12.b.1, and METS Draft RFP Question #25:

Page 107 of the RFP states, “The BOEs are for the Representative Task Orders only.”  Whereas the Government response to Draft RFP Question #25 indicates that the 35 page limit for BOEs should also include cost narratives describing overhead pools and other cost accounting data.  This is information that would normally be addressed at a company-wide level.  Also, the response implies that the subcontractor’s proprietary narratives would count against the BOE page count.  

Please clarify the page limit and contents of the BOE section of the Cost Volume in light of the response to question #25, specifically:

a.  Where in the Cost Volume are the prime and subcontractor’s cost narratives regarding burdens and standard cost accounting practices to be included?  Is any page limit applicable?

b.  If this information is to be included in the BOE section, how will the page count in the subcontractor’s proprietary sealed packages impact the page limit?

c.  Will charts and tables included in the subs proprietary BOE section count against the 35 page limit?

R:  Amendment One revises Provision L.15 to move the information on overhead and G&A pools to paragraph (b).  Therefore, prime and subcontractor's cost information regarding indirect burdens are excluded from the page count.  Yes, charts and tables are included in the page limit.

22.  Reference L.15.1.b and L.15.1.c - Do the prime's and/or proposed subcontractor's cost narratives (proprietary and non-proprietary versions) describing overhead pools and other cost accounting related items required in L.15.1.b count against the Prime's 35 page limit in the cost volume? 


R: The Government previously answered this question incorrectly.  As noted in the Government's response to question 21, information on the overhead and G&A pools is now included in L.15.1(b) which is excluded from the page limit.  However, the information requested in the BOE section does have a 35 page limit. 

23. Reference: L.15.1.b, Page 108 & Exhibit 4 - The RFP states, "In addition to the summary cost proposal for each RTO, offerors shall provide detailed back-up cost spreadsheets that include the following elements by month:..."  Please clarify the requirement of "detailed back-up cost spreadsheets," given a) the requirement for RTO pricing by WBS has been eliminated from the Draft RFP (by omission in the Final RFP release) and b) the elements outlined [following referenced paragraph] are presented on Exhibit 4.
R:  Amendment One revises this section to state that offerors shall provide a description and detailed breakout of Other Direct Costs and indirect pools.  References to "detailed back-up spreadsheets" are deleted.
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